

AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

ISD 621 MOUNDS VIEW PUBLIC SCHOOLS

AND

SEIU LOCAL 284
SCHOOL SERVICE EMPLOYEES - CLERICAL

Effective July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2025

Table of Contents

CONTRACT	4
ARTICLE I RECOGNITION	4
ARTICLE II DUES CHECK-OFF	4
ARTICLE III WAGES	4
Section 3.1 Wages.	4
Section 3.2 Definition of Pay Classifications:	5
Section 3.3 Job Related Training.	5
Section 3.4 Pay Plans.	5
ARTICLE IV HOURS AND OVERTIME	5
Section 4.1 Regular Work Week.	5
Section 4.2 Work Year.	5
Section 4.3 Part-time Personnel.	5
Section 4.4 Full-time Personnel.	5
Section 4.5 Overtime.	5
Section 4.6 Call-Back Pay.	6
ARTICLE V DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE	6
Section 5.1 Probationary Period.	6
Section 5.2 Discharge or Discipline.	6
Section 5.3 No Discrimination.	6
Section 5.4 Union Representation.	6
ARTICLE VI VACATIONS AND HOLIDAYS	6
Section 6.1 Vacation Eligibility Date.	6
Section 6.2 Vacation Allowance.	7
Section 6.3 Vacation Schedule.	7
Section 6.4 Vacation During Probationary Period.	7
Section 6.5 Termination of Employment.	7
Section 6.6 Holidays.	7
ARTICLE VII LEAVES AND ABSENCES	8
Section 7.1 Leaves of Absence.	8
Section 7.2 Family and Medical Leave of Absence.	8
Section 7.3 Return to Work.	8
Section 7.4 Sick Leave Allowance.	8
Section 7.5 Sick Leave Use.	9
Section 7.6 Sick Leave Conversion Options.	9
Section 7.7 Bereavement Leave.	9
Section 7.8 Personal Leave.	9
Section 7.9 Jury Duty.	9
Section 7.10 Notice of Absence.	9
Section 7.11 Military Leave.	10
Section 7.12 Other Long-Term Leaves	10
ARTICLE VIII INSURANCE	10
Section 8.1 Life Insurance.	10
Section 8.2 Long-Term Disability.	10
Section 8.3 Hospitalization-Medical Insurance.	10
Section 8.4 Health Reimbursement Account.	10
Section 8.5 Dental Insurance.	10
Section 8.6 Part-Time Employees.	11
ARTICLE IX SENIORITY	11
Section 9.1 Layoffs.	11
Section 9.2 Vacancies.	11
Section 9.3 Temporary Positions.	11
Section 9.4 Loss of Seniority.	12
Section 9.5 Seniority List.	12

Section 9.6 Staff Development.	12
ARTICLE X SEVERANCE	12
Section 10.1 Severance.	12
Section 10.2 Eligibility.	12
Section 10.3 Severance Pay.	12
Section 10.4 Daily Rate.	12
Section 10.5 Payment.	13
Section 10.6. Hospitalization and Dental Insurance.	13
Section 10.7 Life Insurance.	13
Section 10.8 Retroactivity.	13
ARTICLE XI MATCHING TAX DEFERRED ANNUITY PLAN	13
Section 11.1 Description.	13
Section 11.2 Eligibility.	13
Section 11.3 District Matching Contribution.	13
Section 11.4 Years of Service.	14
Section 11.5 Transition Provisions.	14
ARTICLE XII MISCELLANEOUS	14
Section 12.1 Safety.	14
Section 12.2 Emergency Closing of Schools.	14
Section 12.3 Safety and Security	15
ARTICLE XIII MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY	15
ARTICLE XIV GRIEVANCES AND ARBITRATION	15
Section 14.1 Definitions.	15
Section 14.2 First Step.	15
Section 14.3 Second Step.	15
Section 14.4 Third Step.	15
Section 14.5 Submission to Arbitration.	16
Section 14.6 Jurisdiction and Authority of Arbitrator.	16
Section 14.7 Representation.	16
Section 14.8 Time Limitations.	16
ARTICLE XV MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	16
Section 15.1 Authority and Power of the Employer.	16
Section 15.2 Provisions Contrary to Law.	16
ARTICLE XVI DURATION AND RENEGOTIATION OF CONTRACT	17
Section 16.1 Term of Contract.	17
Section 16.2 Effect of Contract.	17
Section 16.3 Modification.	17
Section 16.4 Negotiations During Term.	17
Appendix A	19
Appendix B	20
Memorandum of Understandings	21

This Contract is made and entered into by and between Independent School District No. 621, Ramsey County, Minnesota, hereinafter referred to as the "Employer" and School Service Employees Local No. 284, hereinafter referred to as the "Union".

The Employer hereby recognizes the Union as the exclusive representative of: All Clerical Office Employees who are employed by the Employer more than fourteen (14) hours per week and more than sixty-seven (67) work days per year, but excluding Secretary to the Business Manager, Personnel Manager, Superintendent, and the Census and Student Accounting Coordinator, Payroll Supervisor, Office Manager, two (2) Principal Administrative Assistants and the Director of Publications and all other employees.

The Employer agrees to deduct for membership in the Union, and to forward such membership dues to the Union, for any individual employee who has authorized such dues check-off in the following forms: written authorization, online sign-up, or audio-recorded phone authorization. The Union shall provide the District with the appropriate form of authorization for member dues deduction.

The District shall make available to the Union a bargaining unit list of employees including name, address, work hours, work location, position, classification, and wage schedule placement, date of employment and electronic mail addresses. The District shall inform the union representative(s) and steward(s) of all new clerical employee hires each month.

Each newly hired bargaining unit employee shall have a union orientation provided by the union representative or steward(s) during the monthly District Orientation for a period of not less than ten (10) minutes. The District Orientation dates will be provided in advance to the union for the entire school year and the district shall notify the union of any changes to these dates.

Section 3.1 Wages.

* See Appendix B	July 1, 2023	July 1, 2024
Administrative Assistant	\$25.63	\$27.36
Lead Building Administrative Assistant Differential	\$ 4.80	\$5.12
Executive Assistant	\$34.63	\$36.97

Subd. A. Longevity: Effective ____ years after date of hire, the employee shall receive an additional \$___ per hour above the career rate.

	2023-2024	2024-2025
After five (5) years	.65/hour	.90/hour
After ten (10) years	.70/hour	.95/hour
After fifteen (15) years	.75/hour	1.00/hour
After twenty (20) years	.90/hour	1.15/hour

Subd. B. Unilateral Pay Equity Wage Increases: The Employer has the authority to unilaterally increase the salary of any classification that is found not to be in compliance with the Local Government Pay Equity Act. Such action shall take place only after a ten (10) day written notice to the Union.

Section 3.2 Definition of Pay Classifications.

Administrative Assistant Lead Administrative Assistants will receive an hourly pay differential Executive Assistant

Section 3.3 Job Related Training.

The Employer will pay salary and tuition to clerical employees for job related training if required by the Employer. The District shall provide eight (8) hours of training each school year. Training topics will be discussed in advance with union stewards.

Section 3.4 Pay Plans.

Clerical staff will paid on the 15th and the last day of each month, or Friday before if those days fall on a weekend day or holiday for hours worked for the preceding semimonthly pay period.

Section 4.1 Regular Work Week.

Forty (40) hours consisting of five (5) days of eight (8) hours (exclusive of lunch period of one-half (1/2 hour), Monday through Friday, shall constitute the regular work week. Every employee shall work forty (40) hours per week for the basic wage.

Section 4.2 Work Year.

The work year for twelve (12) month and eleven (11) month employees shall be July 1 through June 30. The work year for ten (10) month employees shall be August 16 through June 15.

Section 4.3 Part-time Personnel.

Employees working ten (10), eleven (11) or twelve (12) months but less than thirty-five (35) hours per week.

Section 4.4 Full-time Personnel.

Employees working ten (10) months or more on a regular thirty-five (35) hours or more per a week.

Section 4.5 Overtime.

Each employee covered by this Contract shall be paid at one and one-half (1½) times the regular hourly rate for work in excess of forty (40) hours per week, as directed by the immediate supervisor. Employees assigned to work jobs involving more than one (1) wage rate will receive a weighted average overtime rate for work beyond 40 (forty) hours in a week.

Section 4.6 Call-Back Pay.

An employee who is called back to work on an unscheduled basis shall work and be compensated for a minimum of two (2) hours.

An employee who is contacted outside of their scheduled work hours and required to provide an immediate response due to an emergency situation, shall be compensated for a minimum of one (1) hour.

Section 5.1 Probationary Period.

Every new employee shall serve a probationary period of six (6) consecutive months, during which period the Employer shall have the unqualified right to discipline or discharge such employee without assigning any reason therefore, and without recourse to the grievance procedure. An employee promoted or transferred to a new position shall be on probation for three (3) consecutive months, during which period the Employer shall have the right to return the employee to his/her previous position, subject to the grievance procedure. However, any employee assigned to a position requiring regular and recurring contact with students must complete three (3) consecutive months of service during the regular school year in order to complete his/her probationary period. An employee promoted to a higher rated classification shall not have his/her wage reduced below the wage rate for his/her previous classification because he/she is serving a new probationary period.

Section 5.2 Discharge or Discipline.

After completion of the initial probationary period, any employee may be discharged for cause. Dishonesty and theft are causes for immediate discharge. For all other causes, the employee will be suspended pending a dismissal hearing by Employer and Union representatives.

Section 5.3 No Discrimination.

No employee shall be discriminated against because he/she is or is not a member of the Union. The Employer and the Union mutually agree to comply with all applicable State and Federal laws and regulations regarding discrimination against any individual because of such person's race, color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, age, or education.

Section 5.4 Union Representation.

Whenever the School District calls a meeting with an employee that could lead to discipline, the School District shall notify the employee in writing or orally of their right to have union representation at the meeting.

Section 6.1 Vacation Eligibility Date.

An employee's eligibility for vacation with pay during any annual period commencing July 1 and ending June 30 will be determined according to such employee's length of service with the Employer as of such July 1. For purposes of vacation eligibility under Section 6.2 (but not under Section 6.4), an employee hired between July 1 and December 31 will be considered to have completed one (1) full year's service on the July 1 following his/her employment date. Persons hired after December 31 will earn one (1) day per month vacation until July 1. Employees shall not be permitted to take vacation during the first term of employment ending June 30th.

Section 6.2 Vacation Allowance.

After Years	12 (Twelve) Month Employees	11 (eleven) Month Employees	10 (Ten) Month Employees
1	10	9	8
3	11	10	9

4	12	11	10
5	13	12	11
6	14	13	12
7	15	14	13
9	16	15	13
10	17	16	14
11	18	17	15
12	19	17	15
13	20	19	17
15	21	20	18
16	22	20	18
17	23	21	18
18	24	22	20
19	25	23	20

Vacation will be prorated according to the number of hours a day worked for clerical employees working ten (10) months but less than eight (8) hours per day. Employees may convert sick leave to vacation in accordance with Section 7.6 Sick Leave Conversion Options. Employees shall not accrue vacation while on periods of unpaid leave.

Section 6.3 Vacation Schedule.

All vacation requests must be pre-approved by the Employer. Vacation for ten (10) month employees is to be taken during the school year (August 16 through June 15) but not during the week preceding the beginning of the school year or the week following the end of the school year. Supervisors may request that ten (10) month employees take vacation on non-student contact days.

Section 6.4 Vacation During Probationary Period.

No employee may take a vacation with pay during his/her initial probationary period. However, upon completion of the probationary period, time worked during the probationary period will be considered part of the employee's length of service for determining vacation eligibility.

Section 6.5 Termination of Employment.

An employee who has completed at least one (1) full year of service and whose employment is terminated by reason of employee's death or disability, layoff, or who provides the Employer with at least two (2) weeks written notice of voluntary resignation, shall be entitled to receive pro-rata vacation pay for unused vacation time due to service since the last vacation eligibility date.

Section 6.6 Holidays.

There shall be eleven (11) paid holidays per year for twelve (12) month employees, eleven (11) paid holidays per year for eleven (11) month employees and ten (10) paid holidays for ten (10) month employees to be designated by the administration annually. The holiday schedule will be designated by the Employer not later than April 1, in a memorandum to all employees.

If a designated holiday falls within an employee's vacation period, he/she shall receive an additional day of vacation.

In order to be eligible for holiday pay, an employee must be on paid status on the employee's regular work day immediately preceding and following the holiday.

All work performed on a day observed as a holiday will be paid at one and one-half (1 1/2) times the employee's regular hourly rate of pay.

When Christmas Eve and New Year's Eve fall on regularly scheduled work days, an employee who has completed assigned duties will be permitted to leave after completing one-half (1/2) of their normal workday upon approval of the supervisor.

Section 7.1 Leaves of Absence.

There shall be no loss of job seniority in case of leave of absence for good cause, as determined by the Employer. An employee on an approved leave of absence shall retain their original seniority date. Leaves of absence will be administered in accordance with applicable State and Federal law including the Family Medical Leave Act unless the Contract provides greater benefits.

Section 7.2 Family and Medical Leave of Absence.

Upon written request to the Employer, leave of absence, may be granted by the Employer. Such written request shall include the proposed period and purpose of the leave and must be submitted at least thirty (30) days prior to the proposed start of the leave. The thirty (30) day application provision may be waived by mutual consent.

Purposes of the leave must be to either:

- care for the employee's child after birth or placement for adoption or foster care;
- care for the employee's spouse, son or daughter or parent who has serious health condition, or;
- for a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the employee's job.

Leaves of absence are unpaid however an employee may substitute paid time off for unpaid leave provided that the paid time off is substituted at the beginning of the leave and is used consecutively until paid time off is exhausted. An employee granted leave shall remain eligible for benefit plans according to the benefit plan eligibility provision and in accordance with applicable State and Federal law unless the Contract provides greater benefits. Employees shall not accrue sick leave or vacation while on periods of unpaid leave. Additional leave may be granted at the discretion of the employer.

Employees who have worked over one thousand (1,000) hours over the previous twelve (12) months, may take up to twelve (12) weeks of leave for reasons listed above. Hours are calculated using a "rolling" 12-month period measured backward from the date of any FMLA leave usage.

Section 7.3 Return to Work.

An Employee on unpaid leave shall notify the Employer in writing of their intent to return to the District prior to the expiration of the leave as required by the District and communicated at the beginning of the leave. Failure to so notify the District shall constitute a resignation. An employee granted a leave of one (1) year or less shall return to his/her former position.

Section 7.4 Sick Leave Allowance.

On each July 1, the employees shall be advanced their annual leave allowance based on one (1) day per month for each month of paid employment. Such leave allowance may only be used under the terms and conditions set forth in this Article VII. Leave allowance will be prorated for part-time employees. Employees terminating employment who have used their accumulated and advanced annual leave, in excess of the monthly allowances, shall receive a deduction on their final check for the excess usage.

Section 7.5 Sick Leave Use.

One (1) day of leave allowance may be used by an employee for each day of necessary absence due to illness or injury. The Employer may require the employee to furnish a medical certificate as evidence of illness or injury. No employee may receive more than his/her regular rate of pay for any day of absence.

Clerical employees will be allowed up to ten (10) days of leave per year for an illness in the immediate family. Immediate family shall be construed as those relatives listed under Section 7.7. Such leave is non-accumulative and is deductible from accumulated sick leave. Use of the employee's accumulated sick leave shall be allowed for the care of a sick or disabled child under eighteen (18) years of age or under twenty (20) years of age and attending secondary school.

Section 7.6 Sick Leave Conversion Options.

After an employee has accumulated ninety (90) days of leave allowance under Section 7.4 employees will have four (4) options:

- 1. amounts earned beyond the ninety (90) days may be exchanged for vacation time at the rate of two (2) days leave allowance for one (1) day of vacation; limit of five (5) days per year.
- 2. may be exchanged at the rate of two (2) days leave allowance for one (1) day's pay with a limit of six (6) days pay per year;
- 3. the value of up to ten (10) days pay per year may be contributed to the employees 403(b) account and the equivalent number of days of pay shall be deducted from the employees accumulated sick leave;
- 4. continue accumulation beyond ninety (90) days.

Employees may only select option 1,2 or 3 in any single contract year. Such exchange will take effect the following July 1

Section 7.7 Bereavement Leave.

Up to five (5) days leave allowance may be used by an employee for necessary absence due to death of employee's spouse, child, stepchild, parent, brother, sister, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandparents, spouse's grandparents and grandchildren. Up to three (3) days may be used for other relatives. One (1) day may be used for the death of a friend. Days off under this Section shall not be deducted from sick leave. Such leave must be approved in advance by the employee's supervisor, unless advance approval is impossible, in which case, notice shall be given to the employee's supervisor as soon as possible.

Section 7.8 Personal Leave.

Upon advance notice and arrangement with the immediate supervisor, up to a total of four (4) days leave may be used by an employee during any one (1) contract year. Reasons for personal leave need not be divulged. This leave does not accumulate from year-to-year and none of these days of leave shall be deducted from the employee's sick leave allowance.

Section 7.9 Jury Duty.

An employee who is absent because of required jury duty will be granted leave and will be paid the difference between his/her regular salary and the fee received for such jury duty. An employee who completes his/her jury duty with one-half (1/2) day or more of the work day remaining shall report for work for that period.

Section 7.10 Notice of Absence.

In order to be eligible for pay for any day of absence, an employee must notify the Employer of his/her impending absence through a supervisor as far in advance as possible before being scheduled to report for work, unless advance notice is impossible.

Section 7.11 Military Leave.

Leaves of absence for military service will be granted in accordance with all requirements of State and Federal law.

Section 7.12 Other Long-Term Leaves.

Employees may apply for other long-term leaves of absence without pay, not to exceed one (1) year in length, which may be granted at the discretion of the Employer. The precise terms and conditions of any unpaid leave of absence granted under this paragraph shall be determined on an individual basis.

Section 8.1 Life Insurance.

Each full-time employee is eligible for group term life insurance, including accidental death and dismemberment, in the amount of fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000.00) and an option to purchase fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000.00) additional coverage at the employee's expense, providing sufficient number of employees elect to take this option.

Section 8.2 Long-Term Disability.

Each full-time employee is eligible to participate in the long-term disability insurance program provided by the Employer. The Employer pays the entire premium for such coverage. An employee may not use sick leave for any day of absence for which he/she is eligible for long-term disability benefits.

Section 8.3 Hospitalization-Medical Insurance.

Each full-time employee may enroll for either individual or dependent coverage in the Employer's hospital-medical insurance program. Participation in this program is voluntary. The Employer contribution will be equal to the contribution provided for the certified employees. Each employee enrolled in this program shall contribute through payroll deduction, any excess of the monthly premium over the maximum Employer contribution toward the type of coverage for which such employee is enrolled.

The Union agrees that it will not support any grievance relating to alleged inequities filed by an employee without dependents who claims discrimination in relation to an employee with dependent coverage, nor will the Union encourage any lawsuits in relation to the same. An employee who chooses not to participate in the District insurance plans shall forfeit any right to monetary gain in lieu of an insurance premium.

For employees hired during the 2011-2012 school years and for all subsequent new hires, the District's insurance contribution will only be to the high deductible plans. Employees can buy into the co-pay plan at their own expense.

Section 8.4 Health Reimbursement Account.

The Employer will contribute annually the amount of six hundred (\$600.00) for individual coverage and twelve hundred (\$1,200) for dependent coverage into a health reimbursement account chosen by the Employer for reimbursement of IRC Section 213(d) medical expenses incurred by themselves and their spouses and dependents. Effective July 1, 2022, the employer will contribute seven hundred and fifty (\$750.00) for individual coverage and fifteen hundred (\$1500.00) for dependent coverage. The employee must be enrolled in the High Deductible Health Plan to be eligible for the contribution.

Section 8.5 Dental Insurance.

The dental insurance contribution for each full-time clerical employee will be provided equal to that contribution for certified staff. Each employee shall contribute through payroll deduction, excess of the monthly premium over the maximum Employer contribution.

Section 8.6 Part-Time Employees.

Part-time employees who work fifty percent (50%) or more of a regular work week forty (40) hours shall be eligible for participation in all group insurance policies on a prorated basis. Employees working thirty-five (35) or more hours per week shall receive the full district contribution towards health insurance and those working less will receive a prorated contribution based upon thirty- five (35) hours.

Section 9.1 Layoffs.

The Employer recognizes that the purpose of seniority is to provide declared policy as to the order of the layoff and recall of employees. In the event an employee's position is eliminated or hours are involuntarily reduced, the District shall provide the affected employee in writing with at least thirty (30)-calendar day notice before the elimination or reduction is to take place. Employees potentially affected by the subsequent bumping process will be provided with at least fourteen (14) calendar day notice. Employees with the least continuous service within a pay class will be laid off first. Employees whose positions are eliminated or have hours involuntarily reduced by more than one half (1/2) hour per day will have the right to displace the least senior employee. If no positions are held by a person with less seniority within their current pay classification, the employee may displace the least senior employee in the next lowest pay classification.

Employees exercising bumping rights will be offered any vacant positions in the appropriate pay classification before a position is offered which would displace another employee. In no case shall an employee displace any employee with greater seniority.

Employees on layoff will be recalled to vacant positions in order of seniority and the District shall notify them of all vacant clerical positions, pursuant to Section 9.2. An employee bumped or recalled into a position shall not serve another probationary period. In no case shall an employee displace any employee with greater seniority. For a period of two (2) years of the date of layoff, if any opening occurs in the District, the employee with the most seniority shall have first choice to be rehired if the position is at or lower than the employee's previous pay class. Seniority shall be determined by total years of continuous employment in the District. Recall shall not commence until bidding is completed in accordance with Section 9.2.

Section 9.2 Vacancies.

Vacancies will be posted for five (5) working days for new positions or vacancies of more than thirty (30) calendar days duration and will be emailed to every member of the clerical unit. The Union Steward(s) shall also be emailed the posting. Internal employees may apply for any vacancy, including a different school location, or different hours from their existing assignment. The Union may offer suggestions relative to qualifications of applicants. At a minimum, the three (3) most senior internal clerical bargaining unit applicants will be interviewed along with other applicants. An applicant denied a posted position opportunity shall have the right to request the reasons for the rejection. Final decisions, however, for advancements, transfers or promotions, will be made by the Employer, subject to the grievance procedure. Union Stewards will be emailed the names of applicant successfully awarded the position.

In the event that an internal clerical bargaining unit employee is not hired for the vacant position, then the position will be offered to an employee on recall in accordance to section 9.1. If there is not an eligible employee on recall per section 9.1 then the position will be offered to an external candidate.

Section 9.3 Temporary Positions.

A temporary position is defined as one which is created by the extended absence of an employee due to disability, parental leave or other long-term leaves extending over a period of more than thirty (30) days but not to exceed one year. Temporary positions will be posted in the same manner as a regular position.

Employees holding temporary positions will be paid the rate that the position is regularly paid and shall not be eligible for any benefits or provisions of this Contract except for the salary listed above and paid holidays.

If a temporary employee is subsequently hired to fill a regular position, without a break in service, the employee's first day of employment in the temporary position will become his/her seniority date in the Clerical Bargaining Unit. However, the employee shall be required to serve an initial probationary period in the regular position in accordance with Section 5.1 of the Contract.

Section 9.4 Loss of Seniority.

An employee who is properly discharged or who has been laid off for a period of two (2) years without being recalled, or who fails to report to work upon two (2) week notice of recall, shall forfeit all seniority rights. In the event of reemployment, he/she shall serve a new probationary period and his/her seniority rights shall begin as of the date of his/her re-employment.

An employee who voluntarily resigns and is rehired within 18 months of separation, will be reinstated to the District with his/her previous seniority date. Previous years of service will be counted for purposes of salary, leave accrual and longevity pay. Upon return the employee will serve a new probationary period in accordance with Section 5.1 of the Contract.

An employee who must suspend membership in the Union, due to confidentiality of position and who then has a change in job description so that he/she once again is eligible for Union membership, shall retain all seniority rights acquired during the time he/she was in the clerical bargaining unit.

Section 9.5 Seniority List.

If the starting date in the clerical bargaining unit is the same, the tiebreaker for seniority bumping rights will be based on first date of work in any Mounds View School district bargaining unit. Seniority starts with the first day of work for the District in the clerical unit. The seniority list will be posted during the month of April.

Section 9.6 Staff Development.

The District encourages its employees to continually improve their skills and will attempt to provide/schedule staff development opportunities for clerical employees.

Section 10.1 Severance.

Clerical employees who have completed fifteen (15) years of service without unauthorized periods of absence with Independent School District 621, and are at least fifty (50) years of age, shall be eligible for severance pay pursuant to the provisions of this Article upon submission of a written resignation accepted by the School Board.

Section 10.2 Eligibility.

This Article shall apply only to clerical employees whose service has been full-time or part-time or any combination over at least fifteen (15) years of employment.

Section 10.3 Severance Pay.

Eligible clerical employees, upon separation, shall receive as severance pay the amount representing five (5) days of pay for each full year of full-time service but not to exceed a total of one hundred (100) days pay.

Section 10.4 Daily Rate.

In applying these provisions, clerical employee's daily rate of pay shall be the basic daily rate at the time of separation as provided in the contract of the clerical employees for the year completed just prior to retirement.

Section 10.5 Payment.

Severance pay shall be paid by the School District in two (2) annual installments fifty percent (50%) at time of retirement separation and fifty percent (50%) on the first payday in January of the year following the employee's date of separation. No clerical employee shall be eligible for severance pay if the clerical employee is discharged by the School District.

Section 10.6. Hospitalization and Dental Insurance.

In addition, clerical employees who apply for severance and have completed fifteen (15) years of service without periods of unauthorized absences and are at least fifty (50) years of age shall remain eligible to remain in the existing group health, hospitalization, and dental insurance programs and shall remain eligible for the same Board contributions toward single and dependent coverage as the Board contributes to retired teachers.

This contribution and coverage shall continue for a period of seven (7) years from the date of retirement, or until the death of the clerical employee, whichever is earlier. Rights to continue coverage under COBRA or MN Continuation will run concurrent with rights to continue as a retiree.

Section 10.7 Life Insurance.

In addition, clerical employees who apply for severance and have completed fifteen (15) years of full-time service without periods of unauthorized periods of absence and are at least fifty-five (55) years of age shall be eligible to remain in the existing life insurance group. The School Board shall pay the necessary premiums to keep in force life insurance in the amount equal to the last Contract for full-time employees for a period of 7 years from the date of retirement. Rights to continue coverage under COBRA or MN Continuation will run concurrent with rights to continue as a retiree.

Section 10.8 Retroactivity.

This Article shall apply to clerical employees who retire during the term of this Agreement.

Section 11.1 Description.

The Mounds View Matching Tax Deferred Annuity plan is designed to encourage clerical employees to develop a financial plan for their future by providing a matching contribution to a clerk's tax deferred annuity plan according to his/her eligibility as specified herein. The matching annuity program is subject to the rules as entitled under Minnesota State Statutes 352.96 and 356.24 and Internal Revenue Service code 403B.

For clerical employees hired on or after June 30, 2009, the provisions of this Article replace the contractual provisions of Article X which provide for a severance payment and post retirement District contributions towards health, dental and life insurance.

Section 11.2 Eligibility.

Clerical employees who are regularly employed at least fifty percent (50%) and who have completed one (1) year of service with the District, will be eligible for a matching District contribution. Clerical employees on leaves or layoff may not participate in the matching program.

Section 11.3 District Matching Contribution.

The maximum annual District contribution shall be based on years of service with Mounds View School District according to the following schedule:

At the beginning of the employee'sYear of Service with the District	District Matching Contribution 2023-2024	District Matching Contribution 2024-2025
1st year	\$0	\$2500
2-3 years	\$1600	\$2500
4+ years	\$2100	\$2500

Clerical employees in their first (1st) year of service may participate in the 'plan' without a match. The District match will begin in their second (2nd) year of service. Effective July 1, 2024, the maximum annual district matching contribution shall be \$2500.00 per year and available upon hire.

Subd 1. The annual year for District contributions shall be July 1 through June 30. Changes in District matching amounts, based on years of service completed as of June 30 will be made on July 1 of each year.

Subd 2. Clerical employees must establish participation in an eligible tax-sheltered annuity plan, as defined by Minnesota Statutes, before the District will begin matching contributions to that plan. To begin participation, the employee must submit a completed salary reduction form to the Payroll Office. Once established, participation will continue at the same rate until the Payroll Office is notified of any change.

Subd 3. The District match will be divided evenly over 20 or 24 paychecks up to the maximum annual amount. Employees may not recover District matching contributions for years in which they chose not to participate or participated at a level below the maximum District contribution.

Section 11.4 Years of Service.

A clerk's years of service will be determined in the same manner that years of service is calculated for longevity pay. Years of service will be calculated as of June 30 and increased District contributions, based on completed years of service will be effective July 1.

Section 11.5 Transition Provisions.

The purpose of the matching tax-sheltered annuity plan is to replace the severance payment and post retirement District insurance contributions provided for in Article X Severance of the Master Clerical Contract.

Clerical employees hired prior to June 30, 2009 may continue to be eligible for benefits under Article X Severance or may irrevocably choose to participate in the matching tax-sheltered annuity plan. Payments will begin on July 1, 2009. Upon retirement, they will be eligible for the severance payment provided for in Article X Severance. They will not be eligible for the post retirement District contribution for health, dental and life insurance. The amount of the severance payment will be reduced by the amount of all matching contributions made by the District.

Section 12.1 Safety.

All regulations and laws of the State of Minnesota and O.S.H.A. governing the safety of employees and building occupants shall be complied with by the Employer and employees. All employees who are assigned to work in a building when they are the only person in the building will not be assigned tasks which are considered hazardous by the employee and his/her Employer.

Section 12.2 Emergency Closing of Schools.

In the event that the District closes schools on one occasion because of an emergency, clerical employees who report to work as soon as it is practical shall suffer no loss of wages and shall receive compensatory time off. In the event that there are additional emergency school closing days, clerical employees will check with their supervisor as to whether they are to report for work. If requested to report for work by the supervisor, clerical employees shall be paid for that day and shall receive compensatory time off.

Section 12.3 Safety & Security.

The Union and the District agree that the safety and security of staff and students is a priority of the district. The District will meet with the Union each August to discuss safety and security for the upcoming school year to include safety and security best practices, applicable training which may be offered at the discretion of the district as well as any security equipment updates either planned by the district or requested by employees. Equipment updates are completed at the discretion of the district. Safety and security concerns that arise during the school year should immediately be brought to the attention of the Executive Director of School Management and/or the Executive Director of Human Resources for review and consideration of appropriate action.

The Employer and the Union mutually recognize the needs of the public, and that the right of students and residents of this District to the continuous and uninterrupted operation of their schools is of paramount importance. The Union agrees that during the term of this Contract, it will not engage in, support or encourage any work stoppages or slowdowns.

Section 14.1 Definitions.

The following definitions shall be applicable to terms used in this Contract:

Subd. A. **Contract Grievance.** A "contract grievance" is any dispute or disagreement as to the interpretation or application of any term or terms of this Contract. A contract grievance may be processed through the entire grievance and arbitration procedure set forth in this Article.

Subd. B. Day. A "day" is any calendar day except Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday.

Section 14.2 First Step.

Any employee with a grievance shall take the matter up with the immediate supervisor, within five (5) days after the alleged original occurrence of the grievance. If the parties fail to agree within five (5) days after the grievance is made, the employee may appeal the grievance to the Second Step.

Section 14.3 Second Step.

An employee who is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at the First Step, shall, with the assistance of the Union Steward, file a written statement of the grievance with the Director of Human Resources within ten (10) days after the alleged original occurrence of the grievance. The written statement must be dated and signed by the employee and shall set forth the facts and state the provisions of this Contract alleged to have been violated. If the parties fail to agree or the matter has not been satisfactorily adjusted within five (5) days after the grievance has reached the Second Step, the employee may appeal the grievance to the Third Step.

Section 14.4 Third Step.

If the disposition of a contract or policy grievance at the Second Step is not satisfactory to the Union, the Union may file with the Superintendent a written request for a conference with the School Board regarding the grievance. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the School Board shall set a time for a conference of the clerical employee with the School Board, which conference shall take place no later than the next succeeding regularly scheduled meeting of the School Board. The School Board shall indicate its disposition of the grievance in writing no later than the next regularly scheduled School Board meeting with a copy to the employee and the Union.

Section 14.5 Submission to Arbitration.

The Union may submit to arbitration any grievance which has been properly processed through the Third Step of the formal grievance procedure. The Union must file with the Superintendent a written notice of intention to arbitrate not more than thirty (30) calendar days after the written disposition of the grievance at Level III. The parties shall first attempt to agree upon an arbitrator. If the agreement is not reached within three (3) days, either party may petition the Bureau of Mediation Services for assistance under the Public Employment Labor Relations Act of 1971 as amended. The parties shall share equally costs and fees of the arbitrator. The cost of the transcript or recording, if requested, shall be borne by the party requesting a copy of the transcript.

Section 14.6 Jurisdiction and Authority of Arbitrator.

The arbitrator shall have jurisdiction only over those grievances which have been properly submitted to arbitration in accordance with the terms of this Contract. The arbitrator shall have no power to add or subtract from, or to change, modify, or amend in any way the terms and conditions of employment set forth in this Contract; nor shall the arbitrator have any power to hear or determine any dispute involving matters or inherent managerial policy. The decision of the arbitrator shall be subject to all the limitations of arbitration decisions set forth in the Public Employment Labor Relations Act of 1971 as amended.

Section 14.7 Representation.

Any employee, supervisor, or the School Board may be represented at any stage of the formal grievance procedure by any person or agent designated by such party to act on his/her behalf.

Section 14.8 Time Limitations.

Since it is important that grievances be processed as rapidly as possible, the time limitations specified herein shall be considered as a maximum and every effort will be made to expedite the process. Such time limitations may be extended only by mutual consent. Failure of an employee or the Union to comply with the limitations specified shall constitute a waiver of the grievance. Failure of a supervisor or the School Board to act within the time limitations specified shall constitute a denial of the grievance and shall permit the employee or the Union to proceed to the next stage.

Section 15.1 Authority and Power of the Employer.

The laws of the State of Minnesota have vested in the Employer the full authority and power to manage, control and direct the operation of the School District, and to adopt, modify, or repeal policies, rules, and regulations for the School District. All such authority and power of the Employer shall continue unimpaired, except as limited by a specific provision of this Contract.

Section 15.2 Provisions Contrary to Law.

Any portion of this Contract which violates any provisions of the laws of Minnesota or of the United States, or any rules or regulations promulgated thereunder, either now or hereafter, shall be null and void and without force or effect. If any provision of this Contract or the application of any such provision under any circumstances is held invalid, it shall not affect any other provisions of this Contract or the application of such provisions under other circumstances. The Employer reserves the right to amend any provisions of the Contract as necessary to comply with Federal or State laws or rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, subject to the grievance procedure.

Section 16.1 Term of Contract.

This Contract shall become effective as of July 1, 2023, and shall continue in full force and effect to and including June 30, 2025, and annually thereafter except as modified or terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Article XV.

Section 16.2 Effect of Contract.

Any and all prior agreements, resolutions, practices, policies, rules and regulations regarding terms and conditions of employment, to the extent inconsistent with the provision of this Contract are hereby superseded.

Section 16.3 Modification.

Either party desiring to modify this Contract must notify the other party in writing at least sixty (60) calendar days but not more than ninety (90) calendar days prior to June 30 of any year thereafter. A notice of desire to modify this Contract shall set forth as inclusively as possible all proposed modifications sought by the party, and all clauses of this Contract for which no modification is sought by June 1 shall be renewed automatically. Negotiations with respect to proposed modifications may commence at any time after notice of proposed modifications has been given.

Section 16.4 Negotiations During Term.

The parties mutually acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this Contract, each had the unlimited opportunity to make demands and proposals regarding terms and conditions of employment. All understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties are set forth in this Contract. For the duration of this Contract, the Employer and the Union each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right to meet and negotiate regarding any and all terms and conditions of employment, whether or not specifically referred to or covered in this Contract, even though such matters may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time this Contract was negotiated or executed; provided, however, that any or all of the provisions of this Contract may be opened for negotiation at any time by mutual consent.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract as follows: INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 621 Chairperson Union Representative Clerk Steward Superintendent Executive Director of Human Resources Negotiator Date Date

2023-2025

Mounds View Public Schools has identified the following positions based on job responsibilities, eligible for the Lead Office differential.

Position	Location/Program	Previous Title
Lead Building Administrative Assistant	Bel Air Elementary	Building Secretary
Lead Building Administrative Assistant	Island Lake Elementary	Building Secretary
Lead Building Administrative Assistant	Pinewood Elementary	Building Secretary
Lead Building Administrative Assistant	Sunnyside Elementary	Building Secretary
Lead Building Administrative Assistant	Turtle Lake Elementary	Building Secretary
Lead Building Administrative Assistant	Valentine Hills Elementary	Building Secretary
Lead Building Administrative Assistant	Chippewa Middle School	Building Secretary
Lead Building Administrative Assistant	Edgewood Middle School	Building Secretary
Lead Building Administrative Assistant	Highview Middle School	Building Secretary
Lead Building Administrative Assistant	Irondale High School	Building Secretary
Lead Building Administrative Assistant	Mounds View High School	Building Secretary
Lead Building Administrative Assistant	Snail Lake K Center	Department Clerk
Lead Building Administrative Assistant	Pike Lake K Center	Building Secretary
Lead Building Administrative Assistant	Reach/CLT Shoreview/CLT Twin Lakes	Building Secretary
Load Program Administrative Assistant	Student Services	Department Secretary
Lead Program Administrative Assistant		Department Secretary
Lead Program Administrative Assistant	Curriculum and Instruction	Department Secretary
Lead Program Administrative Assistant	Nutrition Services	Department Secretary
Lead Program Administrative Assistant	Activities-Irondale	Activities Assistant
Lead Program Administrative Assistant	Activities-Mounds View	Activities Assistant
Lead Program Administrative Assistant	Early Childhood Programs	Administrative
		Assistant
Lead Program Administrative Assistant	Early Childhood Special	Administrative
	Education	Assistant

2023-2025

The following individuals will be grandfathered in as Class 1 employees for the remainder of their tenure as Class 1 employees with Mounds View Public Schools and receive all current and future salary and benefit changes associated with Class 1 individuals (excluding the Lead differential). Upon any resignation, retirement or transfer from their Class 1, the position will be reclassified as an Administrative Assistant.

Rates:

July 1, 2023	July 1, 2024
\$27.13	\$28.96

Department Secretary – Mounds View HS

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN MOUNDS VIEW PUBLIC SCHOOLS AND SEIU, LOCAL 284

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into between Mounds View Public Schools, Independent School District No. 621 (the District) and SEIU, Local 284 representing clerical employees, (the Union) related to off schedule payments.

WHEREAS, the union is the exclusive representative of clerical employees in the district; and

WHEREAS, off schedule payments have been historically negotiated as part of the clerical labor agreement and are costed as part of the overall negotiation package; and

WHEREAS, during the course of negotiations for the 2023-2025 labor agreement both parties agreed to continue the offschedule payments.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained in this Agreement, including the relinquishment of certain legal rights, the parties now agree as follows:

- The off-schedule payment for clerical employees for each year of the 2023-2025 contract shall be paid at \$.30 per hour based on paid hours worked as part of the employee's regular 10, 11 or 12 month calendar.
- Unpaid hours do not apply towards the off-schedule payment.
- The max off schedule payment cannot exceed the number of hours in a regular work year.
- The off-schedule payment is paid on July 15th of each year.
- Employees who resign during the course of the school year, prior to June 30th, are not eligible for the off-schedule payment. This does not apply to employees who retire during the school year.

Nothing in this MOU shall be deemed to establish a precedent or practice or to alter any established precedent or practice arising out of or relating to the collective bargaining agreement between the School District and the Union. No party may submit this MOU, or any testimony regarding this MOU, in any proceeding as evidence of a precedent or practice, except for purposes of enforcing the terms of this MOU.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement on the dates shown below. By signing below, each party specifically acknowledges that it has read this Agreement and that it understands and voluntarily agrees to be legally bound by all terms of the Agreement.

Dated:	Ву:
INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 621	:
Dated:	Ву:

SEIU Local 284:

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN MOUNDS VIEW PUBLIC SCHOOLS AND SEIU, LOCAL 284

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into between Mounds View Public Schools, Independent School District No. 621 (the District) and SEIU, Local 284 representing clerical employees, (the Union) related to statutory language.

WHEREAS, the union is the exclusive representative of clerical employees in the district; and

WHEREAS, during the course of negotiations for the 2023-2025 labor agreement the union wished incorporate changes in Minnesota Statutes into the contract and the district agreed to follow all statutory language but did not want reference to the statutory language in the contract;

WHEREAS, both parties in the spirit of compromise have agreed to instead add a Memorandum of Understanding that contains the changes in Minnesota Statutes that the union wished to bargain into the contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained in this Agreement, the parties now agree as following:

Payroll Deduction

Effective date: 8.1.23

2023 Session Laws Chapter 53, Article 11, Section 13 (Minn. Stat. § 179A.06, subd. 6).

Payroll deduction, authorization, and remittance. (a) Public employees have the right to request and be allowed dues checkoff payroll deduction for the exclusive representative. In the absence of an exclusive representative, public employees have the right to request and be allowed dues checkoff for the organization of their choice. and the political fund associated with the exclusive representative and registered pursuant to section 10A.12. A public employer must rely on a certification from any exclusive representative requesting remittance of a deduction that the organization has and will maintain an authorization, signed by the public employee from whose salary or wages the deduction is to be made, which may include an electronic signature by the public employee as defined in section 325L.02, paragraph (h). An exclusive representative making such certification must not be required to provide the public employer a copy of the authorization unless a dispute arises about the existence or terms of the authorization. The exclusive representative must indemnify the public employer for any successful claims made by the employee for unauthorized deductions in reliance on the certification.

- (b) A dues deduction authorization remains in effect until the employer receives notice from the exclusive representative that a public employee has changed or canceled their authorization in writing in accordance with the terms of the original authorizing document, and a public employer must rely on information from the exclusive representative receiving remittance of the deduction regarding whether the deductions have been properly changed or canceled. The exclusive representative must indemnify the public employer, including any reasonable attorney fees and litigation costs, for any successful claims made by the employee for unauthorized deductions made in reliance on such information.
- (c) Deduction authorization under this section is independent from the public employee's membership status in the organization to which payment is remitted and is effective regardless of whether a collective bargaining agreement authorizes the deduction.
- (d) Employers must commence deductions within 30 days of notice of authorization from the exclusive representative and must remit the deductions to the exclusive representative within 30 days of the deduction. The failure of an employer to comply with the provisions of this paragraph shall be an unfair labor practice under section 179A.13, the relief for

which shall be reimbursement by the employer of deductions that should have been made or remitted based on a valid authorization given by the employee or employees.

(e) In the absence of an exclusive representative, public employees have the right to request and be allowed payroll deduction for the organization of their choice. (f) Any dispute under this subdivision must be resolved through an unfair labor practice proceeding under section 179A.13.

Union Access

SEIU Local 284:

Effective date: 8.1.23

2023 Session Laws Chapter 53, Article 11, Section 17 (Minn. Stat. § 179A.07, subd. 9).

Access. (a) A public employer must allow an exclusive representative to meet in person with newly hired employees, without charge to the pay or leave time of the employees, for 30 minutes, within 30 calendar days from the date of hire, during new employee orientations or, if the employer does not conduct new employee orientations, at individual or group meetings. An exclusive representative shall receive no less than ten days' notice in advance of an orientation, except that a shorter notice may be provided where there is an urgent need critical to the operations of the public employer that was not reasonably foreseeable. Notice of and attendance at new employee orientations and other meetings under this paragraph must be limited to the public employer, the employees, the exclusive representative, and any vendor contracted to provide a service for purposes of the meeting. Meetings may be held virtually or for longer than 30 minutes only by mutual agreement of the public employer and exclusive representative.

- (b) A public employer must allow an exclusive representative to communicate with bargaining unit members using their employer-issued email addresses regarding collective bargaining, the administration of collective bargaining agreements, the investigation of grievances, other workplace-related complaints and issues, and internal matters involving the governance or business of the exclusive representative, consistent with the employer's generally applicable technology use policies.
- (c) A public employer must allow an exclusive representative to meet with bargaining unit members in facilities owned or leased by the public employer regarding collective bargaining, the administration of collective bargaining agreements, grievances and other workplace-related complaints and issues, and internal matters involving the governance or business of the exclusive representative, provided the use does not interfere with governmental operations and the exclusive representative complies with worksite security protocols established by the public employer. Meetings conducted in government buildings pursuant to this paragraph must not be for the purpose of supporting or opposing any candidate for partisan political office or for the purpose of distributing literature or information regarding partisan elections. An exclusive representative conducting a meeting in a government building or other government facility pursuant to this subdivision may be charged for maintenance, security, and other costs related to the use of the government building or facility that would not otherwise be incurred by the government entity.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement on the dates shown below. By signing below, each party specifically acknowledges that it has read this Agreement and that it understands and voluntarily agrees to be legally bound by all terms of the Agreement.

Dated:	By:
INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 6	221 :
Dated:	By: